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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

‘The Directors present theiv strategic report of the perjod from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Thraughout the document, references lo the “Company™ refer 1o Aspris Holdeo Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited and Its subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is {o act as an investinent helding company,

The Group is a leading provider of speciallst education and care services to young people in the UK. Educating and
cating, for a wide spectrum of specialist edoeaiion and mental healthcare needs, including aulistn, learning difficulties,
soclal, emotional and mentat health conditions (SEMH). In addition, the Group provides speciafist education and
mentat heallth services to young people and adults respectively across the Middie East. The Group operates via two
primarvy divisions:

» The UK divisions provide education and residential care and essessment for children with specialist
ermotional and behavioural difficultles or autistic spectrum disorders,

+ The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbeing services to adults and young people in UATR and K8A,

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 Avgust 2021 acquired 100% of the shareholding
of Aspris Children’s Services Limited (*ACSL”) (previously named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bidea Limited, These financial statements represont the resulls of the activities of the
Company since incorporation, the aotivities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acgquisitions and disposals described belowy, Prior to the acquisition of ACST. the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as part of the ‘Performance of the Business’ section ave for Lhe twelve
months ending 3 Ist August 2022,

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topco Limited, From this
date the consolidated results and activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandeastle Care’) are represented in these financial
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the shareholding in Hoflyblue Healthcare (Arden) limited, latterly
renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited. From this date the resuits and activities of this acquired entity are represented in
these financial statements, Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the pbove
business combinations completed during the period,

In addition to the Group's primary foeus of providing high quality education and care to ajl those within its services,
the Group kas also been focused on the successfil completion of the following key developments:

*  Separation from the Priory Group of companies. Whilst the gperations of ACSL wers Jargely avtenomons
{rom those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services conlinued under 8 transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group's acquisition of ACSL. This transillonal stage included the implementation of Aspris’ own
standalone sysiems and support infrastructure, the process of which was completed by 1% January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be provided from that date,



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 Aagust 2022 (continued)

Business Reyicy (coutinued)

Develop

nient of the business (continued)

Acquisition and iilegration of Sendeastle Care inta the Aspris Group, Sandeastle Care provides residentlal
cace places for aver 100 youug people, primarily in the North West of the UK. These services ave similar in
nature lo those afready provided by the Group. The integration and incorporation of this business into the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the period.

Revicw of Group strategy and long-term plan, Following the successful separation fiom Priory Group, the
Group has undertaken a broad review of the key sirategic direction and objectives of the business. The
completion of this process provides the ovsrarching framework within which the business is managed and
divected by Lhe Board end senior management.

Continued expansion of our Middle Bast operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and cave needs of
both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA. Whilst the Middle East division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations (please refer {o note 4 {o Ihe financial stetements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group’s development sivategy.

Performance of the Business

The key finatcial and non-financial performance indicators during the perled were as follows:

Key ICPTs 2022
Turnover £179.2m
Operating profit before Iupaivment losses nnd Exceplionel costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Occupaney 1,660
QOceupancy % 86.9%
Amnvat Growth in Middle Bast patient appoinlments 5L.1%
Notes:

1. Opersting profil measure of £23.1m i3 equal 10 the Growp®s Operating loss £4.7m staled before Exceptional ¢osts of £7.8in, Impairmenl
tosses of £19.7m and Other losses of £0.3m

2, Gualily, Cupicity and Occupnnoy metrics relate to the UK business anly, unless siated

3. Capaeity an Occupancy quoled are avermges for the period on o noa-proforma basis, with dusl placerments included as n single unit of
capacity and necupancy




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 Aungust 2022 (continued)
Busliess Reyiew (continued
Quality of our scrvices

A primary indicator of the Group's performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
CAre.

Reguiatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services ave regulated by the
Qffice for Standards in Education, Children’s Seiviges and Skills (f Ofsted"), and in Scotland and Wales by their
locel equivalent. All schools and childven’s homes must be licensed, and the relevant regutators asvard quality
ratings to each service. In Abu Dhabi, the schoc] operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Department
of Education and Knowledge (FADEK”) bui is also subject to British Schaol Oveiseas inspections, In addition, a
limited number of our services are also regulated tho Care Quality Commission (*CQC?) in Bngland, and, in
Scotland, Weles, Northern Trefand, and the Middle East, by the local equivalent,

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective regulators
of 83,29, This is above the nallonel benchmark level published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives ave in this area. The provision of the best quality service is a key priority and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this area, supported by increased investment in our support functions that directly ov
indirectly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group's specialist education operations in Abu Dhabj (the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
aulism school In the region. The outeome of this inspection was formally announced on 1* November 2022, with the
schaol achleving an Qulstanding rating across all acess, This further demonstrates the Group®s established delivery
of exceptional level specialist education services beyond the Group’s primaty UK market.

Results for the perlod

The Group delivered high quality services fo meet the needs of a wide spectrum 6f young people, famifies, Local
Authorities and communities across the UK. and Middie East, With an average number of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK during the petiod and 180 young people in the Middie East, In addition, the volume of outpatient
appointments In our Middle East Wellbeing centres increased by 51.1% vs the equivalent prior period, diiven partly
by the opening of twa new centres in Abu Dhabl and Saudi Arabia,

The yesults for the year are set out In the consolidated Income Staterment on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group a8 et 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenus
for the year was £179.2m and Operating profit before exceptional costs, impairment loss and other tosses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue, Key factors of the operating profitability of the business
inciude the number of service users in our facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cost of associated non-
wage costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally.

The Growp’s noet lass for the period was £27.1m, which was after charging £19.7m impairment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primauily relate te the costs incurred in relation lo
the corporate transactions undertaken and outiined above and in note 17, Further details of these exceptional charges
and impalrment arve given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statements.

The Group’s financial position and underlying opevating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the perlod and net cash flow from operating activities during the period of £34.2m,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review {coutinued)

Results for the period (continued)

The largest compenent of our cost base is the wages and related oncosts of ourstaff, which represents 67% of opevating
costs.

Staff are our primary resource and the Group prioritises the wellbeing, vetenlion and recruiliment of our workforce.
This fncludes increased investment jn staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed to increase staff wellbeing
and engagement,

Staff shortages have been a feature of the reporling period, with 1 small number of our available residential places
heing otfline due 1o these constraints, Despite these factors the finanelal performance of the Group was itline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL,

EFuture developments and strategy

Manegement consider the Group 1o be in & good position to expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East, Building on its existing high quality provision and sttong repulalion within each region to provide
essential servioes 1o a greater number of people in the communities that it serves.

The Group sleategy prioritises the improvement of quality and uiilisation across all our existing facilities, in paralle!
with continuing to expand the specialist education aspects of the business, With the planned opening of new education
capacity at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective scquisition of
existing specialist education providers,

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this sirategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limiled, The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide speciatist edycation for up to approximately 100 primary and secondary school aged young
people in the East of England, To support this aeguisition, end the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group
entered Into an extension of its avaifable external debt facilities with its exisling lenders. This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8 February 2023,

In addition, after the close of the reporting period the Group compieted a reorganisation of its UK operations. This
reorganisation is imed at improving and strengthening the management struchure to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing Iransparency and management cornmunication through ell levels of the business.

In the Middle East, the Group is growing vla lhe maturlng of iis recently opencd Wellbeing Centres and via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group opened & Wellbelng Centre in
Riyadh through its joint venture with a lacal partner that was entered into in 2020. The Group conlinues (o view
current and future lacal partnerships in the region as a key avenuc for growth,

{
|




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the perigd to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Prineipal Risks and Uncevtainties

The Group c¢an be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal factors ere the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and gualified staff, the macro-cconomlo environment resulting in increased inflation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s policy towards the funding of speclalist education and
care, changes in the regulatory regime, compelitive threats from ofher providers and the loss of key individuals. The
following ave the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Failure to comply with regalation aud inereased regulatory costs

All of the Groug®s seivices are sublect to a high leve! of regulation by various regulalory bodies. Lavws and
regulations are evolving within the sector (and may be introduced in the futuee) that could impese increased costs on
the Group’s opesations. The Group is unable to prediot the content of new legislation and/or regulations and their
cffect on its business,

Inspections by regulators are cartied out an both an announced and unannounced basis, dependent on the specific
repulatory provisions relating to different care or education services, The fallure to comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determiination of regulgtory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group o cure any defect
noted in ah inspection teport could result in the revocation or imposition of conditions on the registration of any
setvice or & decrease i or cessalion of, services provided by the Group at ane or more of its facilities,

To miligate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experienced team and through the establishment of
robust peficies and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divisiens and report direstiy fo the Board.
Homes are regulatly audited by the teain to ensure compliance with care standards and action plans ave drawn up in
appropriale cases. Risks alse mitigated by {nvesting in the legal and compliance team, and in reciuitment and
training, Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legisiation being implemented.

Employees

The Group’s performance depends on its operationat staff at our schools and residentlal homes. The managers of our
facilities, and their respective site teams, are essential for the provision of our services, The loss of key individuals
and the inability to recrujt people with the right experience and skilTs from the jocal community could adversely
impact the Group’s resuits.

The refevant labour maskets for certain of our services have become mote challenging over the repovting period and
may continue {o be challenging, or become move so, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
ataff vacancies actoss the Group and therefove restriet the proportion of cur capacity that can be fully opercatiohal
and/ar siow futuce growth prospects, Whilst the challenpes have been less evident in the Education partion of the
business, as compared to the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor across the Group,

To mitigate these Issues the Group has implemented 2 wide range of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
retention of staff, These initiatives are led by dedicated senior management from ow Human Resources department,
alang with our Learning and Development funclion, and ave targeted at improving overall employee welfare and to
ensure our staff offering, both financial and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Direciors take steps to ensure competitive safary levels across the Group and
have sought 1o increase across salaries across lhe Group during the periad to aid retentlon end recruiiment, with
specific consideration to 1he cost-of-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment,

However, there is a rigk that these salary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group’s staff metrics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staff shortages may be possible,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Principat Rislis and Uncertainties {eantinued)

Non-Whage supplies and cost inflation

In addition {0 workforce remuneration, the Group also incuts cosis on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilities and rental expenses, The current macro-economic backdrep places increasing pressure on
the availability and cost of certain key supplies.

With energy, and other bulk product supply, chatlenges across Europe driving higher inflation [evels than in
previous years there is increased price pressuve on the Group’s cost base, There Is a risk {bat these costs increase
further and, whilst they are & minority of the Group’s cost base, increases could still be aiaterial,

In addilion, there is a risk that certain supplies will iake longer to source and therefore substitute producls may need
to bs found, there is a risk this could cause disruplion to our services and that alternative supplies may be more
costly than those supplies which they replace.

In addition, certain supplies, such as foad, are sourced from a low number of major national suppliets and therelore
there may be a risk that distuption of service at one supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group,

To mitigate these areas the Group has a dedicated procurement fuinction focused on optimising our sources, costs of
and secutity of supply. The Group engages on & vegular basis with all our key suppliers to ensure effeclive management
of these risks. Tn sddition, the Group seeks lo aprec pricing and security of supply on a forwsard basis where possible
and appropriate, for example on ouy energy supplies, 1o increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side visks,
Management of these tisks include maintaining relationships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate distuptions in supply from a parficular provider.

Loss of revenue from contracts with UK local anthortties

A substantlal proportion of {he Group’s UK revenue derives from publistly fimded Local Autharities. The Group
expeclts to continue to rely on the abillty and willingness ofthese bodies 1o pay for the Group’s services, Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there is a risk that
either budget constrainis or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodies to allocate less money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewer services
ave contracted from independent sector providers.

In addition, there is a risk that (hese Loca! Authorities are not able to meet the increased costs of us viably providing
services at certain facilities, due (o the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitlgate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to ensure they represent value for money and
where necessary reposiliohs services to align with demand, Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissionitg tean, and atler entbers of our scnior management team, the Group engages In regular
communicalion with our Local Authorities customers to ensure these is clear and open dialogue with our key
customers,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Puincipal Risks and Uncertainties (coutinued)

I'T security and Data Protectlon

The Group®s 1T infrastiucture is an integral part of ils operating capability. This infrastructure provides connectivity,
hardware and software applications to ail of our facifilies and central functions, Furthermere, the Group holds [arge
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our IT environment,

There Is a risk that the systems or applications [&fl or ave subject to a scewity breach that temporarily prevents their
use and thercfore impacts our services, In addition, such an event may compromise sensitive deta held within the
Group relating lo its customers, which could gxpose the Group to further liability due to such s breach,

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated 1T dopartment reasonable for the 1T
envitonment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured te enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cyber security,

Inpnact from the risks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global outbreak of COVID-12 In 2020 represented 8 significant source of unceitainty within the wider
mecroscancmic environment, including the sectors inwhich the Group aperates, Discuption was experienced by most
scctors, and the Group’s services were not immune to these impacts,

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to aperate its il seivice provision, with all schools and hontes
remaining open in the UK, and our Middle East Wellbeing centres moving successfully {o an online appointment
based madel, The teams across the Group performed with cutstanding professionalism to ensure we continued fo
deliver essential cducation and care to all those that rely on our services.

‘Whilst (here were notable staff absences due to self-isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term constraints that have
impagted the general labour market referenced above, the Group is currently nol impacted by the pandemic.

The Directors believe any further similar outbreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or other pandemic, may have a greater impact on the Group’s ability to provide its services.

To mitigate this the Group has ciear and robust infection control policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of a further outbreak.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (contfinued)

Paincipal Risks aud Uncertainties {continued)

Financinl risk management

The Group {s exposed 1o fianciaf risks in the form of credit, interest and Tiquidity visks which arise in the normai
course of business. The primary financial visks that the Group is exposed to are noted beloyy, for further detail on these
finanaiel risks please sce note 27.

Credii visk

Finaneial instruments which potentlally expose the Group to eredit risk consist primarlly of cesh and trade receivables.
Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy cerlain credit criteria.

Credil rigk is not considered 1o be significan! given that over 90% of revenue is derived fram publicly fimded enfitics,
and payment is taken in advance or at fime of treatmenl for privalely funded healtheare services at onr Wellbeing
centres.

Interest yate risk

‘The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving externa eredit facilities, ANl the external debt of fhe
Group contains a varlable element which is linked 1o the Sterling Overnighl Index Avarage, published by the Bank of
England. Sentor loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable cn 31 August 2026.

The Group regularly reviews the options available to it for the hedging of Enterest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged component to the interest burden on i1s external debt, In light of prevailing market condisions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interost rale
rises.

Ligqukdity risl

The Group prepares annual and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
The Group has sufficlent available facilities and cash {lows from profils to fund current commilments. The Group has
access 1o a Revolving Credil Facility that is avaiighle to support the Group's operational liquidity requirements at lhe
signing of the financial statements the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Sectipn 172(1) statement

The following Sectlon 172 statemenl, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how the Direclors
have had regard to the matters set out in 5172 (1e to 1f) including key decisions and matters that are of strategic
importance to the Group, The Board of Directors, in ling with their duties under s172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in a way they consider, in good faith would be most likely to promote the success of the Group foy the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to u range of matters when making decisions for the long term.

We aim fo pursue an open and transparent dialogue with aur key stakeholders in order {o develop 2 clear
understanding of their needs, assess their perspectives and moniior their impact on our strategic objectives, As part
of the Board’s decision-making process, the rirectors consider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakeholders whilst also having regard lo a number of broader factors, including the impact of the Group’s
operations on the community and environment, responsible business practices and the likely conseguences of
decisions in the long term,

Key stakeholders

O key stakeholders are our service users (and their families), our workforce, our regulators and our investors and
lenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate within are also impottant stakeholder groups,
All key Board decIsions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder gronps, as follows:

Service users and thelr families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental fiealth services (o a wide range of young people in the UK,
and fo young people and adulis in the Middfe East. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, ate
fundatnental to every aspect of the Group's operations and objectives. The Divectors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest levels of care are provided by a highly skilled and well equipped workforce. In addition,
the Directors monitor the condition and appropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided are appropriately configuved and maintained ta the high standards
required for leading education and care provision. Feedback is received directly through our operational teams, who
interact direotly with service users and their families, and through multiple channels of communication to senior
management to ensure issues can be raised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facility. The directors
are committed to open communication and transparency regarding ail aspecis of our service delivery, and ensuring
the Group®s operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each individual service user,

Worlfarce

Qur worlkforce is key ta providirg safe and effective care to those whom we support. The Group employs s swide array
of specialist education and care professionals and engagement wilh those employees is paramount. The Directors
meonitor the resulis of staff surveys, both regular and ad hoc, togethey with the Group's system of employes forums
which oceur at locz), regional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of actions taken in response Lo the feedback generated through these
channels is the acticulation of tallored career pathways available to all Group employees. Annual salary reviews are
underlaken with reference to the importance of colleague retention, changes in the National Living Wage, and
commercial faciors. The Directors are committed to communiceting the vesults of any wage reviews In a transparent
manter. Further information in respect of employees {3 sot out on the Directors’ report,

Investers

Our shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V, who are wholly owned by Waterland
Private Bquity Investments B.V,, and a number of minority sharehotders which includes our largest single landlord
(Medical Properties Trust) and various members of the Group’s management team. The Board engages regularty with
its major sharcholders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and short-term business strategy, decide upon resource
allocation and comsider key business risks, This includes regular vepotting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transparency over Group performance and direction.

12
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Sectipn 172(0) statement {continned

Regulators

We are subject to & high degree of 1egulation, partioulacly in relation to the registration and ongoing inspection of cur
sorvices. The “business review” secllon above putline the key regulatory bodies, Results of inspections and more
general reports made by the regulalors ere discussed by the Board where appropriate, and ongoing dialogue is
maintained in order to respond with agility to emerging areas of focus, Some of our regulators alse have responsibility
for monitoring the ongoing financlal viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
periodically to engage in this process. Staff bonuses schemes at al {evels of lhe organization are at Teast partly {inked
to the outcomes of infernal and external quallty metrics.

Customers

The majority of our revenue is generated fiom the provision of services to Local Authorities and other public bodies,
with a minotity of revenues generated from private funding, In all cases is important thal we evolve our service
provision to satisfy local demand (the needs of which can change over time), ineet changing education and cave criteria
and provide such services at the 1ight dme and place at an approptiate cost, Communication with customers is ongeing
both loeally and nationally, and the Board wil} consider the requirements of cuslomers when allocating resources for
new or amended service offerings, and apresing a general approach to funding,

Suppliers

We aint to treat our suppliers fairly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential goods and services to
the Group. 1t is our poliey Lo adhere to agreed credit teyms. We maintain strong supplier relationships acvoss our supply
chains, led by the Group’s dedicated procuremenl function, Our key suppliers also includes our contracted workforee,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and cave professions, who play an essential rofe in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver faly and sustainable cutcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Comimunities

The Group operotes nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community, It is therefore
impolant that the impact of our operations on the communities we operate in are laken into consideralion, We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overail environment when coniracting with suppliers, or considering any
significant developmen! projects, for example.

Prinelpal decisions

The Group defines prinelpal decisions as those that are material, or of strategic importence to the Group, and also
those thal heve a significant impaet an any of our key stakeholder groups. By way of example, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and somie of the considerations taken into account in reaching these principal declsions,

Approval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, prior to the start of the new finenclal and aeademic yea, the final budget for the twelve months
ending 31st August 2023, The budget includes forecasts for cach existing facility as well as central functions in order
to arrive at an aggregated business plan, The key stakeholder groups affected are our lnvestors end our workforce,
Some of the key consideralions laken into aceoun! included the balance of delivering ever greater qualily of services,
improved staff relention and growth of our services (o service a greater number of people.

13
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statement (contnued)

Facilily wefurbishmonts, expansions and serviee changes

As parl of the 2022723 budget, and looking shead into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significant
capital expenditure projects in order to refirbish andfor expend existing facilities, retoo! locations 1o better reflect
demeand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions to expand cesluin service Ines, The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and current and fisture service users, Some of the
key considerations taken into account included the likely return on investiment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requirements of commissionets in providing a particular seryice, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service,

Anti-corruption and sati-lvibery matiers

The Group has an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls In place. These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandate to pesform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any transactions occurring at a local, regional or group lovel.

Approved by the Board and signed on iis behalf by:

Trevot M Torringio
Director Divector

The Forge,

43 Church Street Wesl,
Woking,

GU21 sHT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial stalements for the period fiom 28 July 2021 to 31
Aungusl 2022,

Tucorpoyation
The Company was incorporated in Engtand and Wales and commenced trading on 28 Tuly 2021,

The consolidated financial statements have becn prepared in accordance with International financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the IFRS Interprelations Committes (“IFRS 1C”) interpretations as adopled by the UK,

This repart should be read in conjunction with the stralegic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Section 414C {2} of the Companies Act 2006 to set out in the strateglc veport the following which the Directors
belleve to be of sirategic imporiance:

*  Business review;

+ Future developrment and sirategy;

¢ Principal risk and uncerlainties; and
»  Flnaocia! risk management,

Directors of the Group

The Directors, whe held office duting the period, were as foliows:
Olivet ] Bevan (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torringlon (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not recommended a dividend for the reporting period and bas no current plan to do so.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Repart for the Period ended 31 Augast 2022 {continued}

Statement of Divectors’ Responsibilities

The Dircetors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financinl statements in
accordance with appliceble law and regutations.

Company law requires the Directois to piepare financial statements for cach financial year. Under that law the
Direclors have elested lo prepare the financial stafements In accordance with UK adopted Internations]l Financial
Reparting Standards (IFRSs), Under company iaw the Directors must not approve the financial stalements unless they
are satisfied that they pive a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period, In preparing these financial statements, the Direotors ate required fo:

+  seleat sujitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

*  make judgewrents and acconnting estimates that ate reasonabls and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK adopted International Finenclal Reporfing Standards (IRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial siatements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continug jn business,

The Directors are yespensible for keeping adequate accounting receords that are sufficient lo show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s lransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and enable them (o epaure that the financial statemients comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Corporate governance
The Group has robust Governance and cversight of all aspeots of the business:

¢  The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsibls for the overall menapement and direction
of all aspects af the Group.

*  The Executive Commiltee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes sepfor menagement
fram across ell aspects of the business, meets monthly and ate the primary executive team for the exceution
and governance of the day to day running of the Group.

* Quality and Compliance comtnittee, which is Chaired by the Director of Governance and includes senlor
operational and function leads directly relaled to education and care quality, meets monthly and is the scnior
oversight of operational quality and risk,

*  Performance and Commercial Review comunittee, which is Chaived jointly by the Chief Exeoutive Officer
and the Chief Financia! Officer, meets monthly and {s the senfor oversight of the financial and commerciat
performance of the business,

» Independent inspections, in line wilh the relevant legislation (regutetion 44 of The Children’s Homes
(England) Regulations 2015)) the Group has a rofling programme of independent inspections that report inta
the Execative committee and above qualily commiltee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Going coneern

‘The Board reviews forecasts of the Group®s projected trading and sssociated Jiquidity requirements based on a range
of scenarios lo ensute it has sulficient cash to meed its opevationa! and financial needs, These forecasts are underpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near torm
and Jong-term liquidity requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors deoision making ov all key financlal
matters. The Direclors consider both shorl Lerm and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-
month daily liquidity forscasting, anuual budget and periodic intra year reforecasiing processes, and longer term 3
year lang range plans for the Group, Bach of these projects the liquldity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made 4 Joss before tax of £27.4m for the peviod ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the currenl period is
driven by the non-cash Impairment of goodwill {see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional cosis of £7.8m, excluding
these jtems the Group made a loss of £0.Im and an opevating profit of £23.1m. The Group Is forecast to make en
operating profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its labilities and surplus
balancos are held ss cash reserves lo invest In the Group end support the business in futore periods. At 31 August2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due 1o its external fenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans ywere due
to our shareholders,

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debt facilities that arc available to the Group
to support genesal corporate and working capital purposes. As at 31% August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilitles were £19,7m

The Directors assessment of going concern eonsiders llree primary arcas:
1. ey fundmmnental business factors

The Group's primary business, and majority of the Group*s revenues and cashflows, is generated viathe provision
of services with specific characteristics that are key in considering downside risk:

FProvision of essential services

The group provides essential educution and care services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these seyvices bas increased over the [ast decede and contimues 1u do so across the
coundry, Certain service areas are slated as a Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
ateas the Group provides.

Diversified payor base with fow credit risk across the significant majority of the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows ave generaled from customers that ere publicly funded. This
Payor includes over £80 Local Autharity customers across England, Wales and Scotland. Tn the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for sepatately by each cusiomer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration risk.

Estabished position as a trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK., The Group holds long standing relationships,
often held et both operations! and management levels, with iis individual custorners. The Group has consistently
delivered abhove naticnal benchmarks for quality service provision and continues to place, as & priority, the
provision of the highesl quality care to meet the needs of everyone if serves.

Strength, depth and experienice of the Group's management leam and Infrasivicture

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and cxperience of its workforce and
management team. These factars enrable the nationwide provision of our serviees to be managed within a rigorous
risk menagement framework, to respond to risks as they arise.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going coneeril (coutinued)

Versaiility of skills to maet demand changes

The skills embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facilities, are such that we can be
responsive to changes in the needs and demands of the people we care for, their funders and regulators, This
agiiity reduces the time taken fo adapt the Group to best address its core markets.

Cash flow visibility

The majority of young peaple in the UK that we care for remain within our services for more than a year, and the
paymen! value and timing for the related services are largely defined at the oulsel of each placement, These
facters provide a base for good visibility over cote trading performance and the working capital requivemetits of
the business. Thereby leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term,

2. Assessment of the principal rislks and lmpact of a severc but plausible downside scenario

In assessing the potential impact of & range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of s range of risks specific to the relevant buslness sector, as well a3 the compound
impact of risk factors {n the broader macro cnvironment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in avder to essess the likely
impact of muliiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultancously, piving rlse to a material
adverse impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity durlng the going concern peviod, Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financiai staternents

3. Considevation of the contrallable action that the Divectors can tale to mitigate a severe but plausible
downside scenarla

In response to downside risks the Group has a renge of actions, within its control, that it could deploy lo mitigate !
the impaot. These include but ave not limited to

»  TReductlon in non-essential capital cxpenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

s Adapting or pavsing of services where no demand exists to reduce or halt losses at a partioular facility and
better deploy resources

¢ Reduction in cetain areas of discretionary spend that would not have any short fo medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headrgom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there Is no materiel uncertainty on the
Group’s ebility to continue as a going cencern for the period from the date of the approval of these financial
statermnents to 31 August 2024,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 {continued)
Engapgement with employvees

The Directors recoguise that the continued position of the Group in the specialisl education, care and behavioural care
industry depends on the quality and molivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
crucial for the Group to ensure that service users rceelve the best quality cave. The key quality performance indicators
the Group uses lo measure cngagement and lraining are! the employee epinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group c-learning programme, The Group has low levels ol sickness and high levels ol compliance
with training programmes, Whilst nmonitoring these performance indicators, the Group continues o review its
remuneration system lo ensure it is fair, transparent, flexible and provides individual recognition. Emplayees have a
personal development plan that is manitored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Graup recognises that good and effective employce communications ave pacticulecly important to vetaining and
motivating employees, and throughout the business it is the Directors’ policy to promote the underslanding by aft
employees of the Group’s business aims, purpose, performance and Individual opportunities for personal and cereer
develapment, This is achieved through infernal publications, presentetions on performance and a ‘vadsty of other
approaches appropriate for a parlicular location, Employees are consulted on issues through our Active Colleague
Enrpagement (*ACE®) forums. In all lhese areas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and 1T solutions in
order to deliver a positive experience for ell aur colleagues.

The Directors believe that it is important to recruil and retain capable and caring staff repardiess of their gender,
marital stztus, race or religion. It is the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from people who are disabled, lo continue wherever possible the employment of and fo arrange
appropriate training for, employees who become disabled and to provide equal opportunities for the career
development, {raining and promotion of disabled employces.

Chavitable Donations

During the perlod the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Idividual donations were as follovs:

Charify £

UNICEF — Ukraine appeal 50,000
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued}

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

In Aprif 2019, the Department for Business, Bncrgy aud ludustrial Strategy inlroduced a new reporting regulation
entitied the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Repouting Framework (“SECR), replacing various other reporling
requirements. Osganisalions subject to SECR are required to include information velating to their energy usage and

carbon emissions.

The energy used and emissions (ke peried ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Caleniated

Volume Emissions

(leWh) {Touncs of

CO%)

Scope 1 {direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 {indirect) 5,020,739 9709
Scope 3 {indireot) 26,798 268

Total 18,862,124 39526

Scope [ Emissions (ditcet) are Emissions fiom activities owned or controlled by the Group, that release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope 1 emisgions for Aspris Group include amongst other, combustion in owned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emissions (direct) for the period are as follows:

Energy type Nefinition Total Caleulated

Yolume Eimisslons

(IKvhy (Tonnes of

CO%)

(ias Emissions from combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fuels Fmissions from combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3
machinery and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.%

lJUI'PDSBS
Tatal 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) are emissions released inlo the atmosphere associated with the Groups copsumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling, These are indivect emissions fhat are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which occur at sources that the Group does not own or centrol,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (eontinued)

Scope 2 Emissions (Indirect) for the period ave as follows:

Energy type Definition Total Calculated
Yolume Euisstons

(tWh) (Tonnes of

i ~ CQl)

Electricity Timissions from purchased electricity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.%

Scope 3 Emissions (indireet) are emissions Lhat are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which ocour at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions, Examples of Scope 3 emissions ave business travel by means not

ovwned or controtled by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) for the period are as follows:

Euergy type Definition Total Calculated
Volume Emissians
(JKWh) (Tonnes of
o)
Emplayee-owned cars ~ BEmissions from business travel In rental cars or 26,798 26.8
employee-owned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing fuel (mandatory)
Total 26,798 26.8
Intepsity Ratlo
The Group monitors an Intensity ratio in the form of a comparison of emissions to turnover:
Iutensity measure Turnover Intensity
£ Ratlo!
Tonnes CO% per lola) £m urnover 179.2 22.06
Total 179.2 22,06
' ICO el Tunover £m

Quantiflcation and veporting metliodology

The Group has taken guidance from the UK Government Envitonmentat Reporting Guidelines (March 2019), the
GEIG Reporting Profoco| - Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conwversion Factors for
Company Reporting docutnent for caleulating carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been oblained directly from our energy suppliers and half-hawrly (HET) data, where applicable, for the HH supplies.
For supplies where there were not complete periods energy usage available, flal profile eatimation techniques were
used to complets the perlods consumplion. Transporl mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group®s cers and grey flest, CO% emissions were caloulated using the appropriate emission factors 2022 from

the UK Government GHG conversion informatlon.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 {continued)

Streamlined energy and cavbon yeporting {continued)
Tnergy elficient action

In the past year the Group has undertaken verious energy cfficiency woiks across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, bailers and insulation, The Group have, at a number of siles, commenced conversion of Oil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solutions. These focussed works are ongoing alongside general refirbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and general efficienciss,

The Group will continue out offorts through participation in Phase 3 6f ESOS (Energy Saving Opparfunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued structured investment in encigy
efficioncy programmes.

Efhical brading

The Group eadeavours fo purchase goods and services with the least enviconmental impact, Qur efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, collection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of liade
vyaste away from landfill. Aspris also recycled 35% of all trads wasle generated, and we remsain committed to
inoreasing this percentsge of recyeling ycar on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023.

We continue o be suppotted in aur efforts through the coliection of recyclable materials, the callection and
conversion of our waste cooking oil to diesel, and ather initiatives.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and 1o establish that the Group's auditor is aware of thal information, The Directors
conflym that there ls no velevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and signed on Hs behalf by:

Trevor M Torringte
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opinion on the financial statements
In cur oplnion:

» e finunclal slatements give a true and falr view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 Augnst 2022 and of the Group?s loss for (he periad then ended;

s the Group financia{ slatements have been properly prepaved in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

«  the Parent Company finaneial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generelly Accepted Accounting Fractice; and

+  the financial statements haye been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Aspyis Holdeo Limited (“the Parent Company™} end its subsidiaries (“the
Growp”) for the period ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Consolidaled Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financini Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant acceunting
palicies. The financlal repoiting framewark thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, and as regards the Parenl Company fitancial statements, as applied in
accordance yith the provisions of the Companies Act 20086,

Basis for opivion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Cur responsibifities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s respensibililies for the audil of the
fingncial statements section of our report, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate te provide e basls for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to owr audil of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Bthical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requivements.

Couclusions relating to golng concern

In auditing the financlzl statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financis) statetments is apprapriate,

Based an the work we have performed, we have noi identified any material uncertainiies relating to events or
condilions that, Individually or collectively, may cas| significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least bvelve months from when (he financial statements are authorised
for issue,

Gur responsibilities and the esponsibilities of the Divectars with respect to goitg concern are described in the
relevant seclons of this report.
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Aspris [oldco Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)
Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The othet information comprises the information insluded in
the Annual Report, other than the financial staternents and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinien on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any fbom of assurance conclusion thereodi.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 50, considerwhether the other information is nraterially
inconsistent with the financial statemenls ov our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materiaily misstafed, fve identify such material inconsistencics or apparent maferial misstatements, we are
required to delermine whether this gives tise to 2 material misstatement in the financial statements themselves, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a matexdal misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that facl.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companies Act 2006 roporting

Tn our opinton, based on the work nndertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the Strategic zeport and the Directors’ repost for the financial year for shich the
financinl statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the Strategic report and the Directars’ veport have been prepared in accordance with epplicable legal
requirements.

In the Yight of the knowledpe and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identificd material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ veport.

We have nothing to report in respeot of the following matters in velation to which the Companies Act 2006 reguires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the Farent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; ot

s the Parent Company financia! stalements ave not in agreement with the accounting records and reluehs; or

«  certain disclosurss ef Directors’ remuneration specified by law ace not made; or

s we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.
Hesponsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financjal statements and for being satisfied that they give 2 true and fair view, and for such internal

controf as the Divectors delermine is necessary to enable the preparalion of financiel statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand ov eror.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR!S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OFASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors ave responsible for assessing the Group's and the Marent Company’s
ahilily to continuc as 1 going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o golng concérn and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Ditectors efther intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Compsny or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilifics for the audit of the fluancial statements

Qur objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial sltalements as a whole are fiee from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issus an anditoi’s report that jncludes our apinion.
Reasonable essurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered malerial if, individvually ov in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in(luence (he
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audii veas capable of detectlng irregularitles, including frand

Irregularities, including fraud, are inslances of non-compliance with laws and regufations. We design procedures in
line with ol responsibitities, outlined above, (o detect material misstatements in respect of trregularities, including
fraud. The extent lo which our procedures are vapable of delecling irregulerities, including fraud is detailed below:

We have identified and assessed the potential risks relaied to irregulavities, including fraud, by consldering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group®s remuneration polictes,

o enguiries of menagement regarding; complince with laws and regulations; the detection and
respense Lo the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspecled or elleged fraud; and the
conlrols in place to mitigate visks related to fraud or non-compilance with laws and regulations.

o eblaining an understanding of the tegal and regulatory fismewvork in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Heallh and Safety requirements,

o performing procedures to verify lhe existence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
fraudulent recognition of amounts.

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the tollowing:
a  cnquity of management concerning actuai and potential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation lo assess
compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

o performing analylical procedures to identify any unusuel or unexpected retationships which may
indicate risks of misstatenient due to fiaud; and

o readlag the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We have also considered the risk of fraud through managenient ovelride of controls by:

o sample lesting the sppropriateness of joumal entries and olher adjustments; assessing whether the
Jjudgements made in making accounting estimates ere indicative of a potential bias; and eveluating
the business rationale of any significan? transactions that ere unusual or outside the normal course
of bugitiess;
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SNDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

o discussing among the engagement team how and where fiaud might aceur in the financial statements
and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recopnition, specificaliy in relation to revenue existence, as well as the potential for
management overtide of controls specifically in relation to the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates,

o in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue recopnition, testing the appropriateness of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these palicies and performing specific procedures over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

¢ discussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are awaire of any
frauds, or non-compliance with laws and regulations, during the period.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial slalements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting & material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not defecting
one resulting fiom ciror, as fiaud may invelve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentalions or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non~
compliance with [aws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our vesponsibilities ts available on the Financlal Reporting Councif’s website at:
httpss/verw fro.ovpuk/auditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our auditor's repout.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company*s members, as & body, in accordance with Chepter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those molters we are required to stale to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose, To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do itot accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this ceport, or for the opinions we have formed,

DocuSigned by:

Paul ﬁﬁ.u'iu.gfow

E10CCICF40AB4CC...

Paul Ctheringlon BSc FCA CF (Senior Statutary Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statulory Auditar
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited 1iability partnership registered in Engiand and Wales (with registcyed number QC305127).
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022

£in

Revemnue 4 179.2

Opersling cosls (156.1)

Exceptional ilems 10 (7.8)

Impairment loss 15 e.n

Other losses 8 (0.3)
Operating loss A W

Net finance costs 9 (22.7)
Luoss before taxation T oA

Income tax 11 03
Lipss attributable fo the owness of the Group _—E
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Clonsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to
31 August 2022

2022
£m

Loss for the period (27.1)
_Total compyehensive income foy the peviod 21y
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Cansolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets .
Non-gurreat nssels
Property, plant and equipment 12 158.1
Right of use assets 13 156.4
Intangible assets 14 1434
457.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 18.1
41.6
Totnl assels 500,5
Curvent linbilities
Leasc liabililies 13 5.1
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Incoine {ax liability (0.9}
Deferved inconte 20 {288y
(56.3)
Nef current liabilitles 137
Non-current liabilities
Lease Uabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 (159.6)
Provisions 23 {1.0}
Doferred tax liabilities 26 (36,2}
(352.2)
Net assets 92.0
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34,5
Accumulated Josses (22.1)
Totl equity 92,0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

o
Irecto

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes fn Equity for the Period ended

August 2022

Share capital Share Retained Total equity
Premium Earnings
Loss for the period [27.13 27.1)
Total camprehensive income {a71) (27.1)
New share eapital subserlhed 84.6 345 - 1191
At 3] August 2022 84.6 34,5 _ @7.0) 22.0
30

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statemendts.



Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Nate 2022
FA
Assets
Non-current assets
Investiments in subsidiayies 16 1191
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 13 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent % 07
0.9
Tatnl assely 120.0
Current linbilities
Trade and other payables 24 0.9)
Net current assets/(linbilitles) -
Net assets 119.1
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premivm 345
Tatal equity 119.1

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferved by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 fram
presenting its own profit and loss account, The Company’s loss for the year was £19,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behglf by!

Trevos M Toringlo,
Director Director

21 Maich 2023
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Asptis Holdeo Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended August 2022

Share eapital Share Retained Total cquity
Premivm Earnfngs
Loss for the period - -
Total comprehensive income - -
New share capltal subsevibed 84.6 345 - 119.1
At 31 August 2022 84.6 34,5 - 119.1
32
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from opernting activities
Loss tor the period

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amartisation

Depreciation on right of nse assels

Linpatrment of geodwill

Loss on disposal of property plant end equipment
Finence income

Finance costs

Sharc of loss of equily accounted inveslees
Income tax

Workdng capital adjustments
Increase in [rade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Incvease in provisions

Decreage in deferred income

Cash generated frem operations
Tncome faxes paid
Nef cash flow from eperating activities

Cash fMows from investing activities

Tnlerest recelvad

Acquisitions of property plant and cquiprment
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Advances of loans to joint venlures

Acquisition. of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from finnueing activities

Intetest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Proceeds from external borrowing draw dosyns
Repayment of external borrowing

Repayment of [oans advanced from former parent
Principal paid pn Jease Jiabilities

Interesl paid on lease liabilities

MNet increnase in, nnd closing cash and cash equivalents

Nute

—
M2 oa b Oh

17
13
13

2022
£m

27.1)

13.7
8.5
19.7
0.3
(.1)
228
0.5

{0.3)
38.0

(8.4)
4.1
0.2

0.1}

35,8

(1.6)
342

0.1
(12.13
19
(1.1
o a2.7)
(135.8)

(113}
119.1
158.6

(41.3)

(90.1)

(4.8

(10.5)
19,7

18.1
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Aspris IHoldco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1. Geneyal inTormation

The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated in England and Wales and domioiled in
United Kingdom, registration number 13534635, Aspris Holdeo Limited Groug includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial stalements were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2. Accounting policles
Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and jts interpretations adopted by the UK ("UK adopted IFRSs").

Summary of significant accounting policies and ley estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial staternents are set ont below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless othervise stated,

Basis of prepavation

The consolidated financial statements arc prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 as applicable to companies using iIFRS,
The Company has elected to prepare its parent Company fingncial statements fn accordance with UK. generaliy
accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rufes.

The Company has teket: advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elected not to present lts cwa Statement of Comprehensive Tncome in these financlal stetements.

Going concern

The Board revicws forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requiremients based on a range of sceharios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operalional and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and progedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long-term liquidity
requircments of (he Group, to inform the Directors’ decision making on all key financial matters. The Divectors
consider both shott term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging fiom rolling three-inonth daily liquidity
forecasting, enmual budget and periadic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a Joss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current perlod
reflects the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 13) of£19.7m and exceptionat of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of£0,im and an operating profit of £23, Lm. The Group is forecast to make an opecating
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods, At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans
wete due to our shareholders.

As patt of their considerations the Divectars teview a range of different scenavios, including a severe but plausible
downside scenario to assess the impact on both the liquidity and covenant headroom of the Group, see note 3,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Netes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Basls of consolidntion

The Group financlal slatements consolidate the financial slatements of the Company and s subsidlary underlakings
drawn up lo 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an enlily controlled by the Company, Controf 15 achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fiom its activities,

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement from (he
cffective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjusiments are
made (o the financial statements of subsidisties lo bring thelt accounting policies into [ine with those used by the
Group.,

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that resulf in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group, The cosl of & business combination is measured as the fair value of lhe assets given,
equily instraments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of cachange, plus cosls directly atiibutable
{n the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired and {iabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initiatly al their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair valug of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as goodwlll

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transections betwveen the Company aud its
subs{diavies, which ave related parties, ave eliminated in full.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an impairment that requires recopnition in the consolidated
financial stafenients.

Changes in aceounting peolicy
Ths following amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 Tuly 2021:
s Amendments 1o TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Naone of the standards, interprelations and amendments effective for the fivst time from 28 July 2021 have had a
material effect on the financial slatements.

The fellowing new standards, interpretations and amendments are hol yet effect:

Amendinent to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of & business”
1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before Inlended use
1A8 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
Annual improvemestt eycle fo [FRS (2018-2020 Cycle)
o IFRS 1: Subsidiary as a first time adopler
o IFRS 9: fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial lisbilities
o IFRS 16: Lease incentives amended example
+ 1AS 8: Definltion of accounting estimates
¢ JAS 1! Disclosure initiative —accounting policies
¢ Amendments to IAS 12 "Deferred tax relatlng to assels and liabilities arising from a single transaction®

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments which are effective for periods beginning after 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopted early, are expeoted (o have a materiaf effect on the financial statements,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Revenue Recopnition
Recognltion

Revenue is recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we bave provided a service. These volume
metrics are recorded and combined with the applicable foe rate per person per service, to derive the total revenue to
be recognised, There is Jimited judgementa) input this process

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satisfied as conirol of services is transferved lo the customer.
The Group bas determined that most of its performance obligations are safisfied over time as the client
simuitaneously received and consurnes the benefits provided by the Group as the educalion or eare services are
rendered. In the circumstances, revenuc is vecognised al the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount corresponds ditectly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to dete.

The principles in IFRS are applied to yevenue recognition eritoria using the following 5 step model:

1. Identify the contracts with the customer

2, Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4, Allocate the transaction price to the pevformance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the enlity satisfies its porformance obligations

Fee arrangements

Below ars details of fee arrangements and how these ave measured and recognised, for revenue from the provision of
services: ’

Aspris delivers special education and care services to its service users in line with contractual agreements, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performance obligations in
contracts consist of delivery of services to service users. For all contracts the stage of completion and delivery of
performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service useis at
that date,

Transaction price

To calculate the transaction price of contyacts rates are applied deily or by specific service provided to service users
as detailed in contractual agreements.

Payment ferms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within a range of specified days of receipt of
service or invoiee, dependant on the specific clvcumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises curcent tax, Tax s recognised in profit or loss, except that a change
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income,

The current ingome tax chatge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted ar
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countties where the Ginup operates and generates taxable income,

36



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is staled in {he statemént of financial position at cost, fess any subsequent
accumulated deprecialion and subsequent sccumulated impairment Josses.

The cost of properly, plant and equipnient Includes directly ativibutable Incremental costs Incurred in their
acquisition and Installation.

Deprecintion

Depuectation {s charged so as lo write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construclion over
their estitnated useful lives, as follovws:

Asset class - Years depreclated over

Freehold buildings 50 yeats

Leasehold buildings The Jegse term

Fixtures and fiitings 3 to 16 yeurs

Motor vehicles The short of the lease term o 4 years

Intaagitile assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the idenlifinble assets, iiabilities and contingent llabilities of the entity recognised at
the dale of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued fo the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwlll is not subject 1o amortisation but is tested for impairment on at least an annual basis. The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash generaling unit (‘CGU"), the value in use of that CGU and the carrying
value of the intangible asset in accordance with TAS36, This assessment factors in the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst olher factors, current trading, capacity and stafiing constraints to assess an estimalion
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order 1o calculate the present value of these cash
flows,

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised divectly in the income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary or a joinily confrolled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss recognised In the income stalement on dispusal.

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost.

Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquived in 8 business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Avgust 2022
(continued)
Amortisation

Amartisation is provided on intangible asscts so as to write off the cost, less any estimaled residual value, over their
expected useful economic life as follows:

Asset ¢lasy Ycoars amortised over
Customer conbracts 6 1o 17 years

The amortization periods are based on expected customer charn rates and, where relevant, the length of fixed-term
customer conlracls

Valuation of fuvestments

Investments in subsidiaries held by the company arc measured at cost less any accumulated impairment in the
company's slatement of financial position,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly tiquid investments
that are readily convertibic to a known amount of cash and are subjest to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Trade receivables

‘Trade recelvables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinery course of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal opetating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classificd as current assets, If not, they are presented ss non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recoghised initially at the transeclion price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, fess provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of lrade
receivables is established when there is objeciive evidence that the Group will not be ablc o collect all amounts due
according ta the originel terms of the receivables.

Traide payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinaty course of
business fiom suppliers. Accounts payable arc classified as current liabilities if payment is duc within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cyele of the business if longsr). 1T not, they are presented as non-current tiabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

RBorrewlongs

All borrowings are initially recorded af the fair value which is often (he amount received, net of fransaction coss.
Barrawings ure subsequently carrled sl smartised cosl, with (be difference belween the proceeds, nel of transaction
costs, and the amount due on redemption being rccognised as a charge 1o the income statement vver the period of the
relevant botrowing.

Interest expense Is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in Tingnee costs,

Barrowings are classified as curreni liabilities unless the Group has an uncondiiional right to defer scttlement of the
Itability for at least 1Z months afler the reporling dale,

Deferred tax

Deferred tox is recognised on temporary differences belyveen the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the
consolidated financlal statementis and Ihe corresponding lax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tex liabitities ate generafly recognised for all taxable temporary ditferences. Deferred fax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxabie profits will
be available against which those deductibfe temporary differences can be ufilised. Such deferted tax assefs and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a lransaction that aflects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises fom the initial cecognition
of goodwill.

Deeferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences assoctated with invesiments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group s able to control the reversal of the lempotary
difference and it is ptobable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax
assels arising from dednctible temporary differences associaled with such investments and interests are only
recognised te the extent thet {t is probable tha there will be sufficient taxable profits against which fo uiilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are oxpected to reverse in the foreseeable future,

The caurying amount of deferred tax nssels is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no Jonger probable that suflicient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax liabilitles and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacled or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The megsurament of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax copsequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group sxpecls, at the end of the reporting period, lo recover or setile the cartying amouni of its
nssets and liabililjes.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional itens

Ttenis that ave both material and non- reoccurring aad whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification vwithin the consolidated financial information ave referred to 2s exceptional items. Jtems thal may
give rise to classification as exceptiona! include but are note limited to, significant and malerial reciganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs. Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10,

Provisious

Provislons arc recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuli of a past event,
it és probabile that the Group will be required to settle that obligetion and g reltable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions ave measured at the Divectors’ best eslimate of the expenditure required lo settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material,

Leases
Definitton

A fease is a contracl, or a pat of & contract, that conveys the right to use an asselor a physically distinct pait of an
asset (“lhe undeilying asset™) for a perfod of time in exchange for consideration, Further, the contract must convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or 4 physically distinct portion thereof, A coatraet is decined to convey the
right to control the underlying assel if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

»  Obtain substantlally all the economic benefits from the use of the undertying assel, and;
¢ Direct the use of the underlying asset {e.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Initial vecogniiion and measurement

The Group initially recognises a leass lability for the cbligation lo make lease paymenls and a 1ight-of-use assel for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term,

The lease Liability is measured at the present value of the lease paytments to be made aver the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not
readily determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease paymeats include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reascnably
cerlain), expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penaltics (where payment is considered
reasonably celtain} and variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. [n such cases, the initial
measurement of the lease [iability assumes the vatlable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-uss asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease Kability, adjusted for Jease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial divect costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs.

Sub.s‘equen{ measuremnent

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

() Increasing the canying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

(b} Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

{c) Re-measuring the carrying emount to reftect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease pay ments or on the accurrence of other specific events,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Iuterest on the lease liability in each period during the lease lerm is the amount that produces a constant periodic rale
of interest on the remaining bafance of the lease Hability. Tnterest charges ave presented sepavately s non-operating
cosls, included in finance cost, in {lie income statement, unless the costs are included in the cavrying amount of
another ssset applying other applicable standards,

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in
the pericd in which the event or condition that triggers them arises.

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost made! it IAS 16 and depreciated and chacged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in (he
aecounting policy for Propecty, plant and equipment, Adjustments are inads to the camying value of the right of use
assel where Lhe Jease liability is re-measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets ave tested for
impaiunent in accordance with [AS 36 Tmpairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting polioy in impairment.

Lease modifications

If & lease is modified, the modified coniract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease, If a lease
continues lo exist, the lease modification will result in either a separaie [ease or a change in the accounting for the
existing lease.

The modification is accounied for as & separate Jease il both:

{a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right 1o use one ar nore underlying sssets; and
{b) The consideration for the lease Increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
{n scope and any appropriate adjustments lo that stand-alone price to reflect the circumsiances of the parlicular
contracl.

1f both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate Jeases, the unniodified criginal
lease and a separate lease, The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases.

[f either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not aceounted for as a separate lease and the
considsration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the medified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification that fully or partisily decreases the scope of |he lease (e.8, reduces (he square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the vight-of-use asset to reflect partial or Tull
termination of the lease, Any difference between those adjusiments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective
dele of the modification.

For all ether lease modifications which ave not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee (o
recognisc the amount of the re-measurenient of the lease Hability as an adjustinent to the conresponding rigist-of-tise
asset without affecting profit or loss,

Short tersi and low value leases

The Group has pade an nccounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and
lease liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy electicn on a lease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lease assels on leases
for which the underlying asse! is of low value.

Leass paymients on short term and low value leases ace accounted for on a straight line bases over the lerm of the
lense or other systematic basis if considered more appropriale. Shott term and low value lease payments are included
in pperating expenses in the income staterment,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the peried ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity insttuments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is material, the initia! measurement iz on @ present vatue basis,

Defimed contribution pension obligation

A defined confribution plan is a pension plat under which fixed conttibutions are paid info a separate entity and has
no legal or conslructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does naf hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prioe periods,

TFinancial instruments
Initial recopnition

Financial asscts and financial liabilities comprise all assets and liabilitics reflected in the statement of financial
position, exeluding propetly, plant and equipment, inlangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial fiabilities in the statement of financial position when, and anly
when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financia! instrument.

Financial assets are initially recoghised at fair valve, Financial liabilitias are initially recognised at fair value,
represcating the proceeds received net of premjums, discounts and fransaction costs thet are divecily etiributable to
the finaneial liability,

Purchases or sales of 3 financial assets under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by reguletion or convention in the markelplace concerned are defined a3 a regular way
purchase or sale. All vegular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financia! liabilities classified as fair

value through profit or loss (“FYTPL") are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Group commits to

purchase or sell the financial assets or finanelal liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and financlal lfabilities ave recognised on the seitlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset or liability is
received from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the fime frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace,

Subsequent to initial mensurement, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at either amortised cost or
fair value.

Clessification and megsurement

Financial instruments ave classifled at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following categories:-
s financisl assets at amortised cost;
s financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss {FYTPLY; or
Financial liabililies are classified into one of the following two categories: -
«  financial linbilities at amortised cost; or
s financia! fiabilities at falt vaiue through the profit or loss (FYTFPL).

42



Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Financial mnstrments {continued)

The cfassifleation and the basis for measurement are subject to the Growp’s business mode! for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as detailed below:-

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financia! asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the foliowing conditions and is not designated as at
FVYTPL:

* theassels arc held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets in order fo collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financlal assets give rise on specified dates to cash {lows that arc solely
peyments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the above two crilerla is not met, the financial assets ave clagsified and measuved at fair value through the
prafit or foss (FYTPL).

1f a financial asset meets the amortised cest criteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset al
FVTPL, Such an electicn is irrevocable and applicable only if the FYTPL classification significantly reduces a
raeasurement or recognition inconsistensy.

Financtal assels ot fair valne through the profit or foss (FVTPL)
Financlal assels not othervise classified shove are classified end measured as FVIPL.

Financial liubilitles af amortised cost .
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at EVTPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Financiail Habilities al faiv value through the profit or loss
Financial lisbilities not measured at amortised cost are classified and measared at FVTPL. This classifteation includes
derivative liabilities.

Derecognition

Financlal assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

»  the controclual rights to the cash flows from the financlal asset expire,

» it transfers the right to recelve the contractual cash flows in & transaclion in which substantially all of the
risks and rewnrds of owneiship of the finaticial assel are transferred; or

»  the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial assel.

On derecognition of a financial assel, the difference between the carryiug smount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as a gain or logs in the profit or toss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised In OCI hn respect of equily investment seouritics designated as FYTOC! is

not recognised in profit or loss an derecognilion of such securities. Any interest in Lransferred financial assels that
qualify for derecognition that is ereated or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset ov Uability.
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Tinancial Instruments (eontinued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby It lransfers assels recognised on its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of thero, Tn such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised,

When the Group derecognises (ranslerred financia! essets in their entirety, but has continuing involyement in them
then the entity should disclase for each type of continuing involvement at the reparting date:

{a) The carrying amount of the assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the entity’s stalement of
financial position and represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised financial
nssets, and the line items in which those assets and liabilifies are recognised.

)] The fair value of the assets and liabilities that represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the
derecognised financial assets;

{c) The amount thal best represents the entity's maximum exposure to loss from Hs continuing
invelyement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposuve to loss is
determined

(d) The undiscounted cash oulflows that would or may be required to repurchase the derecognised

financial assets or other amounts payable 1o the transferee for the transferred assets

Finaneial labilities
The Group derecognises & financial liability when its contractual obligations ave discharged, cancelled, ov expire,

Impairment of financial assets
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recoghises oss allowances fol expecied credit losses (ECL} on financiel instruments that are nol
measured at FVTE], hamely trade and other reccivables,

Provisions for eredit-impairment ace recogrised in the statement of income and sre reflected in accumulated
provision balances against each relevant financial instruments balance, [

Evidence thal the financial asset is eredit-impaired include the following; :

*  Significant financial difficulties of the borrowey or isster,

s A breach of contrac! such as default or past due event;

*  The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on terins that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

»  1tis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

s There s other observable data refating lo a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group, i

For trade reccivables, the Group applies the simp!ified approach, whigh requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the recelvables. :

Trade receivables are not subject to material or significant credit Jogses. Credit risk js not coustdered to be significant ]
given that over 90% of revenue is derived fiom publicly funded entities. ;
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Finaneinl instruments (continned)
Fiuancial mstrmnents — Risk management
The Group iz cxposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and lquidity risks which arfse in the normal

course of business, The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed {o ars noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please see nate 27,

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

*  Trade recelvables

*  Cash deposits

s Senior and revolying credit Facilitles conlaining a varlable element linked to Sterling Overnight Index
Average

Capital Maungement
The Group*s ehjective when menaging its capital is to enrsure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a

going concern whilsl maximising returns for stakeholders through the oplimisation of debt and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capital siructure,
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3, Critical acconnting judgemcuts and key sources of estimation

The preparation of the Ninancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain finencial assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The use of estimates and assumptions is principally limited to the determination of provisions for impetrment and
the valuation of financlal insteurments as explained in more detail belovw:

Provisions for impajument

In detetmining impairment of financial assets, judgement Is required in the estimalion of the amount and timing of
fiture cash flows as well as an asscssment of whether the eredit visk an the financial asset has Increased significantly
since Initial recagnition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurerent of ECL.

Where the fair value of financial assets and liabilities cunnot be detived from active markets, they ave determined
uging a vaviety of valuetion techniques that include the use of mathematical modets. The input to thess models is
derived from observable markels where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is yequired in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reported
fair value of financial asscts and liabilities.

Goinp Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirsments based on a range of scenarios to ensure it has

sufficient cash to mect operational and financial needs. Thesc forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded

forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long term liquidily

requirements of the Group, to Inform the Directors decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors i
consider both short term and Iong term forecasts for the buslness, ranging from rolling three month daily liquidity

forecasting, annual budget and periodic intre year reforecasting processes, ang longer tero1 3 year long range plans

for the Group. [lach of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

There arc necessaty estimates and judgements in the dircctors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the stralegic report.

In assessing the potential impact of a ranga of risk factors on the business the Directars have considered the likely
impact on the Group of a range ol risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro enviropment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

[n particular, 2 severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Divectors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simuitancously, giving tise to a material adverse
impact on the Group's profitability and liquidity during the going concern period, Specifically, the severe but
plausible downside scenario assumes:

»  Reduction in oceupancy levels fiom base forecasts of an aggregate of approximately 2% for the going
cohcern period.

*  Costinflation:

o  Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group’s planned wape
increases (which alrerdy reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other intemal increases)

o MNon-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflaticn assumed beyond the Group®s base case,
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Critleal accounting jidgentents and ey sanrces of estimation {confinned)

* TFee Inflation — over and above the cost Impacts the scenario considers a muterfal shorifali in the
propaition of fee increases that can be successfully achieved.

+ Inlerest rate increases — assumes a marked and sustained increase in intevesl rates, ant therefore the cash
flows required to service the Group’s debt. The scenario faclors in Bank of Bngland Base tates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding al this level for the remaining golng concern period.

We do not consider that COVID-19 will bave a material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concetn
period.

The revensc and cost Inipact of suck # scenario would have w mgjor negative impact on the Group’s profitability for
the going concern period. With operating profit being adversely Impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adopting = prudent approach, the Directors have considered Lhis scenario before relevanl mitigating
actions that the business coutd jinplement to Hmit the adverse impact, Befors the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continues to forecast sufficient liquidity and financial eovenant headroom.

Business Combinations

The Group undertook three business combinations during the period {note 17). In accordance wilh IFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used. The Direclors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses ot the dale of the business combination. The purchase method requires significant estimates and
judgments.

While Divectors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
acouralely value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the dafe of acquisition, estimates and assumptions are
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement, Examples of critical estimales in valuing cerlain assets we have
acquired include;

»  future expecled cashflows arising from assets and labilities,

»  the fair vahie of intangible and langible assets, and
s discount rates.

Useful Economic life of intaugible assets

The Directors have delevmined the usefu) economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as part of business
combination. The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of
fixed-term customer contracts.

Right of usg asseis and liabilities

The Group leases a number of properijes in the jutisdictions In which it operates, recognised In accordance with
IFRS16 (note 13),

In enlenlgting the asset/liabllity attached to several of the lease agreemenis the Group has required vse of sn
Incremental Borrowing Rate {“1BR™). The 1BR has considered the 1isk-free rate attributable lo the currency, location
and lease term of each property, adjusted to reflect the intevest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Crifical accounting judgemnents and key seurces of estiniation (continned)

The Directors have applied judgement to datermine the lease term for contracts that include a renewal or break
option. Extension options and breek clauses are included in 8 number of the Group’s lease agreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Directors have consldered all facts,
circutnstances and the exercise dates of such clauses, Extension aplions and break cfauses are only reflected in the
lease term if there is reasonably certalnty they will be exarcised.

Ernpaivment of goodwill and intangible fixed agsels

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the poriod, Factoss laken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future finuncial performance
of the asset and where il {s a component of a larger cash generaling unit, the viability, expected futuve performance
of that unit using a discounted cashflow model as at the period end and the assessed fair value of each cash
pencrating unit. The key eslimates snd assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forecasis with growth ratcs that represent the Divecters’ best estimates. (note 15)
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4. Revenne

The mnglysis of the Group's revenus for the perlod is as follows:

2022
fm
Turnever 178.6
Other revenue 0.6
175.2
The enalysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
fm
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle Basl based divisions 2.7
179.2
5. Staff costs
The aggregale payrall costs (including directors’ remuneration) weve as follows;
2022
£m
Wages and salaries 1.4
Social security costs 8.0
Peasion costs, defined conlribution scheme 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Direclors) during the period, analysed by
calegory was as follows:

2022

Ne.

Site and opeyational 2,987
Administralion and support 174
3,161
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{continued)
6. Operating loss

Asrived at after charging/(crediting)
2022
£m
Deprecialion expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use asscls 8.5
Amorlisation expense 5.0
Exponse on shart term leases o 3.5

7. Awlitors® vemuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incuired by the Group during the period, all fees relate fo the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incwrred related to non-audit services,

8.  Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains or losses for the period are as follows!

2022
£m
Loss o disposal of property plant and eqguiptent 0.3
9. Tlaance income and casts
2022
£m
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits 0.1
6,1
Finarnce costs
Interest an external borrawwings 12,0
Interest an lease liabilities i0.8
22.8
_Net flnance cosis 227
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{continued)
10. Daceptlonal ileis

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related to business combinations 5.8
Aspris formation and reorganisalion costs [.3
Othey {ransaction costs and chavitable donations 0,7
7.8

Acquisition costs on business combinations relale lo the acquisition of Aspris Children's Services Limited {(£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Tepco Limited (£3.11m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited

(£0.1m).

Asprig formation and reorganisation casts relate to olher expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as

slandalone from the Priary Group and include marketing-related expenses associated with the new Aspris brand.

Reorganisation costs primarily relate 1o the revision lo redundancy costs associated with exit of certzin customer

contracts and the implementation of revised management organisational stietures in the Group,

Other Iransaction costs relate to the Group's assessinent, and execution, of other corporate and property relaled

transactions.

The Group elected 1o make a one-of¥ contribution 1o UNTCEF's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recoghised in the income statement

2022
Cuvrent tax £m
Current tax on taxable income for the period 1.3
Deferred tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of tempotary differences 1.6
Tax eredited in tlhe period {0.3}

‘The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the siandayd rate of corporation tax
applied to the logses for the year ave as follows:-

2022

£m

Loss for the year 27.4)
Tax using (he company's fax rale 19% (5.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rate changes 04
Total tax credited in the period _(0.3)
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Taxation {continue}

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the rates of lncome tax arc expected to increase fiom 19% fo 25% for the period
begianing Apiil 2023,

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belief that its tax veturn posilions are supportable, the
Directors believe it is move likely than not that a taxation authority would accept its filing position,

The Directors belicye thet 118 accruals for tax labilities ave adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law,

No material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions

and may involve a series of complex judgements about futuce events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the deletmination is made.

12. Property plant an(l equipment

Group
Furnitore, Properties
Land and fitings and Motor unler
buildings cquipment vehicles  consfruction Tatal
£m £1m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
Additions 2.3 6.5 0.1 32 12,1
Acquited through business
combinations 122.4 29.6 0.5 3.3 1559
Disposals (1.0) {0.5) - 02 {1.7)
Transfers 0.6 03 _ - (0.9 . -
AL11 August 2022 124.3 359 07 54 1663
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal (0 (0.3) - - _ (05
At 31 August 2022 o 17 64 ol - 8.2
Carrying amount
At 31 Aupust 2022 122.6 29.5 9.6 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there Ls a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over all
property acquired for a consideration of over £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further informaticn on the Group's
cxternal borrowings,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

{continued)

Group
Assets

FProperty  Motor vehicles Total

£m i £m

Cost or yaluation
Acquired through business 150.8 24 153.2
combinulions
Additions 34 0.5 3.5
Modificalions 83 - 8.3
Disposals (0.1) (0.1) 0.2)
AL31 August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreciation
Charge for the perlad 7.3 1.2 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - - {0.1) (0.1}
At 31 August 2022 7.3 1.1 8.4
Carrying amount
At 31 Avgusf 2022 154.7 17 156.4
Linbilities

Property  Moter vehickes Taotal

£m £m £m

Acquirved (hrough business combinations 1510 2.4 1534
Addilions 30 0.5 35
Modificalions 83 - 83
Disposals - - -
Interest 102 0.3 10.5
Least paymenis (14.0) () (15.3)
Foreign Exchange movements 0.1 - .1
At 31 Aupust 2022 158.6 1.9 160.5
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Right of use asseis and Jiabilities feonfinned)
Nature of leasiug activities

The Group leases a number of praperties in the jurisdictions ia wihich it operales, Satne of these leases provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation ov index rate movements, The Group has options to purchase or extend
the leases of ceitain properties. As the excrelsing of such options is not deemed to be reasonably certain, such
renewal oplions are not taken into account when determining the right of use assets and liabilities. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the leasc term.

Leasc liabilities ave due as follows:

Maturity analysis £m
Year i 15.5
Year2 15,1
Year3 143
Year 4 139
Year 5 . 13.7
Onwards _ 2113

. 303.8 ‘
Less; unearned interest (143.3)
160.5

Anatysed as: |

Non-Current 1554 i
Current 5.1
160.5

Amounts vecognised in profit and loss

An amount of £0,9m hias been recognised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that expired and were not
renewed, and for rolling lease agreements, Cash payments [n respect of these leases amounted to £0.9n1.

At 31 August 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agrcements in excess of a two-month notice period,

54



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022

14, Intaugible assets

Group

{continued)

Contractual
Goodwill customer
(Note 15) relationships Total
£m £m £m
Cast or valurtion
Acquired through business combinations 69.3 98.8 1681
At 31 August 2022 69,3 98.8 168.1
Amaortisation
Amortisation charge - 5.0 5.0
Impaitment (note 15) 19.7 - 18.7
At 31 August 2022 19.7 50 24,7
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2022 49.6 93.3 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Assets (“IFAs™) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA™) exercises
carrfed out on behalf of tnanagement by an independent expert, at two points:

1. Acquisition of Priovy Bducalion Services Limited (*PESL” — subsequently rename Aspris Children’s
Serviges Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited en 31 August 2021

2, Acquisition of SC Topco Limited by Aspris Childven’s Sexvices Limiled on 28 January 2022

3, Acquisition of Hollyblue Healihcare {Arden) Limlted, latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

Al IFAs have been amortised in line with useful economic lives determined by management at each relevant

acquisition date.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill and where other TFAs

where there ave indicators of inapaivment,
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15, Goodwill aud impairment

Goodwill repregents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired on the putchase of
the subsidiary companies. In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annpal impairment
ieviews, Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”) based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA™) exerolses:

1. Acquisition of Priosy Education Setvices Limnited (“PESL" — subsequently renamed Aspds Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspiis [laideo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hallyblue Healtheare (Arden) Limited, lalterly venamed Aspris {Arden) Limijted

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Group castle

Graup
£m £m £m fm
Goadwill recognised during the petiod 21.0 411 0.6 69.3
Impairnient recognised during the period - 19.7 - {1ehn
Goodwill 21,0 280 046 49.6

In accordance with accounting standatds, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill,

In order to determing if there has been any hmpairment of Goodwill, management prepared calculations of the
recovetable amount for each CGU. For bolh ACSL Group and the Sandeastle Care Group the recoverable value is
determined by the forecast present value of future cagh flows of the CGU based on S-year projections ending in a
terminal growih rate assumption. Forccasts are based on the assumptions set out below:

Ifey Assumptions ACSL Group Sandeastle Care

Piscount Rate 11.0% 10.3%

Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%

Operating Margin 10.3% 20.6%
ACSL Group

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSY. Group has mainteined performance in line with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operationa! challenges, particulaily regarding consteaints on the availabilily of staff have beea
effectively maneged, without & material adverse impact on ACSL’s profitability for the period,

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepsred by managerent and apmoved by the Doard, with appropilate
adjustments for rading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27, Replacement capex. to maialain the cstate has alse been assumed, on par with FY'23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group®s acquisition of 100% of the share capilal of ACSL Group on 31 August 202 the Group assessed
the fair value of identiflable net assets acquited ta be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62,2m, giving
rize lo £21.0m intengible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 Avgust 2022 Management assessed {he
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5m greater than the carrying value, and thus no jmpairment
to the Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the pediod.
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Goodwill and impairment (continued)

Sandeastie Care Grouyp

Since the date of acquisition, the Sandcastle Care husiness has maintalned & high quality rating performance of over
90% posl-acquisition, bul the business has been impacted by operational challenges that have reduced bolh its
available cepacity and utilisation, Whilst aspects of these challenges are nol thouglt to be permenent, they have
impacted the overall assessmient of the present vaflue of future cash{lows from the business. These challenges include
staffing consiraints that have led to veduced total occupaucy and ah adverse impact on operating margins compared to
the budpeted targels for the business,

Forecast foy FY23 is based on the budgel prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to Increase al 1% CAGR behween FY24 and
T'Y27. Replacement capex Lo maintain the eslale has also been assumed, on par with F¥23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group's acquisition of 100% of the share capltal of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable nel nssets nequired to be £14.0m, compared (o the lotal consideration of £61.7m,
giving tise to £47,7m intangible goedwill being recognised by the Group,

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandeastfe Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower {han the
caitying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance shect date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
assaciated with the CGU by the shortfall In eavrying vafue versus thie recoverablé amount.

Impairment sensifivities forr ACSL Guroup and Sandeastle Care Gronp

If any one of the following assumptions were amended by | percentage point, the impac! on the impairment value
would be as follows;

Sensitivities Sandceastle Care
Discount Rale (1% increase) Reduction to carrying value | Reduction to carrying value

from £241.1m to £221.2m from £77.6m o £71.6m
Terminal Growih Rate (1% reduction) Reduction to carvying value | Reduction o cartying value

[rom £77.6mto £71.5m
Reduction to camying value
from £77.6m to £74.8m

from £241.1m to £220.7m

Operating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27) | Reduction fo esrrying value
from £241.1m 1o £223.0m

Aspyls (Arden) Limlted

The assefs held by Aspris (Avden) Limited consist of land and buildings, lhese were at fair value on acquisiticn,
there are no subsequent indicators of impairment to the assels of Aspris {(Arden) Limited, Since the acquisition uf
Arden the business has been performing in line with expeclalions, and thus no impairment to the Goodwill avising
on gcquisition is requived in the periad.
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16. Investments - Group Subsidiaries

(continued)

Detalls of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Name af sabsidiary

Aspris Mideo Limited
Aspris Bideo Limited

Aspris Children®s Services Limlited

Coxlense School Limited
Castlecare Group Limited

Frogress Care and Edacation Limited

Speciality Care Limifed
Strathmore College Limited
Asprls {Thetford 1} Limited

Aspris New Educsation Services Limited

Castlecars [Holdings Jimited
Quantum Care {UK) Limited

Speciality Cave (Rest Homes) Limited
Specality Care (Medicare) Limited
Specialised Courses Offering Purposeful

Education Limited

Aspriz (Thetford 2) Limited
Duchall Property Limited
Castie Homes Care Limited
Castiecare Cymiru Limited
Castle Homes Limited
Rotheare Estates Limited
Castlecare Education Limited

Frincipal activity

Holding company
Holding company
Specialist educetion services
™Non wading

Mon trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery

Non {rading
Hducation

Non teading
Children's care homes
Care delivery
Holding company
Cere delivery

Non tading

Non trading

Chifdren’s care homes
Childven’s care homes
Chiidren’s care homes
Property company
Specialist education services
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Regisiered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdomn
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Klngdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdont
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
yoting rights
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

{00%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

103%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)

Investmenis {continued)

Thellnd Truslee LLF Non trading United Kingdom 100%
Asptis (Troup House) Limfted * Education United Kingdom 100%
Aspirs Scotland Holdings Limited* Holdirg company United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Limited* Children’s care and education  United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy Cafe Limited* Children's care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited* Children®s care and education  United Kingdom 100%
8C Topeo Limited** Heolding company United Kingdom 100%
SC Bideo Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Natabra Properties Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Limited** Children's care homes United Kingdom 100%
Partixol UK Limited®* Property company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden) Limited Property company United Kingdorn 100%
Priory Heaithcare LLC¥*¥ Healthcare UAE 0%

Unless stated otherwise the registered address of each subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,
Surrey, Englaed, GU21 6HT

*Company registered address is: Radic City Building, 1a Bridgend, Kitbimie, Scotland, KA25 7DF

**Company registertd address is: 49 Whitegate Drive, Blackpoal, Lancashire, Englind, FY3 9DG

*«# Aspris Growp controls Priory Healthcare LLC through & combinalion of contractual sgreements and the ability to direct the financisl and
operalional menagement of he entity

Aspris Holdeo Limited has given statutory guarantees sgainst all the oulstanding liabilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022. This thereby allowed dovmant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual aceounts under section 3944 or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be
exempt from the annual zudit fequirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
August 2022.

The Group has control of a 60% Interest in Saudi Healtheare LLC (“SHe"), an entity registered in KSA, which
operates a Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although important to management's future plans and
strategy in the tegion, is not seen as material in the context of these Financial Stetements,

During the period the Grouy loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0,3m.
acquired on business eombination. SHe did not trade during the period and incurred [osses of £0.9m, the Group’s
share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised in operating costs.

Investments - Company

Group

2022

[nvestments made during period - Cost £m
Aspris Midco Limited 119.1
At31 August 1022 119.1
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

17, Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris Children’'s Sevvices Limited and subsidisries

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Priory Education Services Limited
(latterty named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obtaining control, The principal activity of Aspris Children’s
Services Limited (“ACSL™) is provision af specialist schools, collages, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL vvas
acquited by Aspris Bideo Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Holdeo Limited. This transaction was
undertaken to purchage the children’s services and Middie East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were previously members of.

The 100% shaveholding in ACSL was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m.

As puit of the acqufsition, foans totafiing £90.1m between ACSL and ifs subsidiaries, and Priory Group were setifed,

The amounts recognised in respect of the Identifiabie assels acquired and liabilitles assumed are as sct out in the

table below:
£m Boolk Fair Value Fair valne
Yalue adjustments

Assets and liabilitles acquired

Propeity, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assets 1532 {0,2) 153.0
Intangible assets 272 152 424
Trade and other receivables 13.7 0.1 138
Cash and cash equivalent 19 - 1.9
Lease fiabilities (133.2) - (1532}
Trade and other payables (134.6} - (134.0)
Provisions (0.8 - (0.8}
Defeived tax labililies 3.8 {17.3) (21.1)
Tutal identifiable assels 38.4 2.8 412
Goodwill B - - 21.0
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:

Cash 62,2
Cash fiow analysis:

Cash consideralion 62.2
Less: cash and cesh equivalent balances acquired {1.9)
Net cesh outflow arising on acquisition 60,3
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Aspris Holdee Limited

Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Business comhinations (continued)

"I'he faig value of the financial assels includes receivables with a fair value of £12,2m and a gross contractual value
ol £12.6m. The best estimate at acquisilion dale of the contractual cash flows not (o be collected are £0.4m.

Tlhe goodwill of £21m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain infangible assets, which do not
qualify for separate recognition, such as;

»  Assembled workforce of ACSL, lncluding both the UK and Middle East workforce

o Aspris® abilily to extend the cxisting relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the useful
economis life anticipated at initial acquisition

+  Development of new relationships in the Middle Basl !

Nonge ol the goodwill Is expected (o be deductible for income 1ax purposes,
Acquisition related costs of £2.5m arose as a result of the {ransaction, ;
Acquisitlon of subsidiary - SC Topco Limited and subsidinries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shave capital of SC Topco Limited (*Sandcestic Care’},
oblaining control, The principal activity of Sandcastle Care is the provision of therapeulic care homes for chitdren.
Sandcastle Care was acquired to achicve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on praviding children's service. The tyansaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in the Northivest of
England, where Sandcastle Cares® propertics ave primatily located,
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Aspris Holdoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continuned)

Business combinations {continned)

The amouats recognised in respeet of the identifiable assets acquired and liabitities assumed are as set out in the

table below:

£m Book Yair value Tair
Value adjustments value
Assets and Habilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 24.4 (13.2) 112
Right of use assels 02 - 0.2
Intangible ssscls 12.0 44.4 56.4
Trade and other recelvables 38 - 3.8
Cash and cash equivalent 3.4 - 3.4
Lease habifities .2} - (0.2}
‘Trade and other payahlcs 2.5) - 2.5
Income tax liability (1.1} - (LN
T.oans end borrowings [CR%] - {41.3)
Deferved tax ligbilitles __ﬁ_LO.Z) (15.9) (16.1)
“Total dentifiable asseis 03 i53 140
Goodwill - - 417
Total cousideration L 61,7
Satisfied by:
Cash 617
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideralion 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances aequired 3.6}
Net cash outfiow arfsing on acquisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4m and a gross conlraclual value of

£3.4m.

The goodwill of £47. 701 arising from the acquisition consists of the preseice of certain intengible assels, which do

not qualify for separate recagnition, such as;

»  Assembled workforce of Sendcastle Care,

«  Sandeasile Care’s ability to exiend the existing relationships acquived with Local Authorities beyond the

useful economic life anticipated at initial acquisition,

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tex puiposes.

Acquisition related costs of £3.1m arose as g result of the transaction,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Augunst 2022

{continned)
Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris (Arden) Limited

On 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited,

latter]y renamed Aspiis {Avden) Limited on obtalning contro). Hs principal activity is a propesty lessor. The

purchase of Hollyblue Healtheare {Avden} Limited enabled the acquisition of the frechald Interests in proporties
previously leased to the Group, This included properties that had previously formed panl of the Priory Group’s

tesidential adult care division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue (Avden) Limited such properties were

disposed of by the Aspris Group to the Priory Group at fair velue.

The amouats recognised in respect of {he identifiable asscls acquived and liabilities assumed are as set out in the

table below:

£m Book Value i Mo vaae
Assets and labilities aequired

Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 5.5
"Trade and other payables (0.1) - (0.1}
Income tax liability .0 - 0.1}
Deferved 1ax liabilities - 0.6) (0.5)
Total identifiable assets 53 {0.6) 47
Goodwil - - 0.6
Total ¢consideration 5.3
Satisfied by:

Cash 5.3
Cash Tlow analysls;

Cash consideration 5.3
Less! cash and ¢ash cquivalent balances acquired -
Net cash cuiflow arising on acquisition 53

None of the goodwill is cxpected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes,

Acquisition related costs of £0.!m arose s a result of lhe (ransaction.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

. Business combinations (continued)
Impact of fhe acquirees on auounts reported in the statement of compreheustve income

The amounts of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included In the consolidated
statement of jncome for the reporting period is as follows:

Aspris  Sundenstle Arden

:in £ £m
Revenue 162.7 16.5 0.0
Operating cost (140.9) _(15.5) 0.3
Operating profit before Impatrment and other losses and exceptional 218 1.0 0.3
costs
Impairment and other logses and exceptional casts {8.0) {19.8) 0.0
Opersting profif 13,8 (18.8) 0.3

The vevenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current veporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that ocourred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading period
stating 1 September 2021, is as follows:

Em
Revenue 1940
Operating cost Q77
Cperating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 19.3
costs
Impairment and ofher losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Ovpstating profit 0.0
18, Tvade and other veceivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Tiade receivables 19,7 -
Provision for impaiiment of trade receivables ©.1) -
Net trade receivables 19.6 -
Accrued income 0.4 -
Prepayments L7 -
Laars receivable from foint veature {note 28} 1.0 -
Other receivables o 13 0.2
24.5 0.2

All current veceivables ave dus within | year of balance sheet date. None of these are subject to matedial or significant
credit losses, Credit risk 32 not considered to be significant piven that over $0% of vevenue is derived from publiely
funded entities.

Amounts receivable from joint venture ave not subjcct to inferest and ave repayable on demand,
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Nates to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aungust 2022

(continued)
19. Cash and cnsh equivalents
Group Company
2022 2022
Lan £m
Cash at bank _ 18.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and st bank. Cash at bank is held with banks or financial
institution counterparties which are investment grade rated. Management do not expeel any losses fram non-
performance of counterparties.

20, Deferred incoms

Group

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 289
Delerred during the year 28.8

Recognised during fhe year (28.9)
28.8

Deferved Income 18 in respect of services invoiced in advance of delivery and is released as services ave delivered.

21. Issued capital and veserves

Allotted, ealled up aud fully paid shares

2022 022

Na. £000

A Ordinary shares of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,646
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the perjod ended 31 August 2022

(continued)
Issued capital and rescrves {continued)
New shaves allotted

Class No. Consldeyation
£000
A Ordinary shares of £1 each! 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 ench? 1,782,603 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1,232,266 36
85,866,210 119,120

3 A Ordinesy shares of £1 gach have (ull valing And payments of dividend fights, Tight te distobutions slongside B Ordinary shinceholders in
priadty 10 C Ordinary shareholder, subject to a tireshold, Rights te diswitutions once the threshold has been swrpassed alongside the B Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinery sharaholders,

B Ordinpry shages of £1 each have full voling wad payments of dividend rights, right to distabuli | ide A Ordinary sharcholders in
priority to € Ordingry shareholder, subjest to  theestiold. Rights to distributions ancs the freshold has beon surpassed slongside the A Ocdinary
shareholders and C Osdinary shareholders.

1C Ordinary shnres of £] ¢neh have o voling tights. C Ordinary shares huve rights (o dividends and disteibutions onge the threshold hos been
surpassed alonpside the A and B Ordinary shateholders,

22, Logns and borrowings

Group

2022

Non-current loans and borrowings L
Bxternal foans 165.0
Capitalised debt fees (5.4}
Extiernal borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisilion of Sandeastie Care and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the dvawn serdor facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group’s assets and cerry {nterest at a variable margin over (he applicable SONIA rate.
The loans are repayable 7 years from the date of completion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are vecognised at fair value net of aiisaction costs that ate divectly altributable io the credit
facililies. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Loao facilities arc subject to a single financial covenant test which is assessed quaertetly. This covenant
assesses the total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
each quarterly test date. At the batance sheet date the covenant threshold wus 7.4x, as al 31 August 2022 the ratio
tevel was matertally betow this threshold al a level of 4,9%. This equates o £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA,

As at 31 August 2622 the Group had letters of credit in place amounting to £2,3ra. This athount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revolving credit facitity of £22m for this purpose, with no other mounts drawn under this facility
as at the balance sheel dafe. These letters {ssued by the Gtoup’s principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pensien scheme, and to support credit gratted under supplier contracts.
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(continued)
23, Provisions

Legal

provision

2022

£m

Acquired through business conbination 0.8

Charged in income statemnent 04

Used during year (0.2}

1.0

24, Trade aud other paysbles

Group  Company

2002% 2022

Em £m

Trade payables 31 -

Accrued expenses 1.7 -

Amgunis due to related parties - 0.9

Social security and other taxes 2.3 -
Other payables e 44

21,5 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behaif of ADEK. for ihe operation and investment of the
schoal operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25. Pension

The Group operates defined contribution pension schiemes. The pension cosi charge for the period represents
coniributions payable hy the Group to the scheme mnd amounted to £4.5m

26. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is cafeniated {n full on temperary differences under the tiability method using e tax rate of 19%. The
increase In corporation tax to 253% is expecied (o be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tax balahces which are exgected to veverse us at | September 2022,

Deferred tax assels have been recegnised in respect of all temporary differences giving rise lo deferred tax assets
whele the Direclors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances wilbin (he same jurisdiction
as permiitted by [AS 12) during the peried are shown below,
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(continued)

Deferred tax (canttuued)

Detalls of the deferred tex iability, amounts yecognised in the profif or foss and amovnis recognised in other

comprehenslve income are as follows!

Recognised fu Recoguised in Recognised in Total
business Inceme other 31 August
combinations comprehensive 1022
Note 17y income
Intangible asset differences 23.8 1.5 - 22.5
Tangible asset differences 14.0 X N .Y
37.8 (1.6 - 362

Deferred tax assct has not becn recognised i respect of capltal tax losses cairied forward in the UK totalling £2.4m

as there is insufficient evidence as o their recoverability.

1. Financial fnstruments

Financial assets and liabititics

Financial assels and financia] liabilities comprise ali assets and Habilities reflecied in the statement of financial
position, exciading property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred Lax assets, prepayments and deferred

tax liabilities,

Group Company
2822 2022
Tlnancial assets L1 £m
Investments in subsidiaties - 1191
Tradie and other receivables 2.8 0.2
Cash and cash equivaient 18.1 0T
40.9 120.0
Tinancial liabilittes
Trade and other payables 21.5 0.9
Income tax liability 09 -
Deferred income 288 -
Lease liabilities 160.5 -
Loens and borrowlngs 159.6 -
Provisions 10 -
372.3 8.2

Thete is no difference between the carrying valuc of financial instruments and their faiv value. The Group has no

financlal instruments that are maeasured at fair value,

‘The Group does nat cequire callateral in respect of financial assets.
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{continued)

TFinancial instruments (continmed)

Tinancial visk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity visks which arse in the normal
coutge of business. ‘Fhe primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are detailed below;

Credit rislc - Cash deposits aned Trade recelvables
Financial instruinents which potentially expose (he Group to credit risk consist primnarily of cash and tiade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions thel satisfy cerlain credit criteria, Credit risk in relation (o
trade receivables is nol considered o be significant given that the vast majority of revenue is derived firom publicly
funded education and care services. The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the
balance shecl is net of allowances of £0.1m Tor doubtful receivables, The Group measures those allowances al an
amount equel to the lifetime expected credit fosses using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group's historical cxperience and forward-looking infermation.

Allowances againgt doublful debls are recognised against trade receivables based an estimated irrecoverable amounts,
determined by 1eference lo past experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group’s allowance for doubliful
debls relalss 1o specific trade receivables that arc not considered to be recoverable, and management enly considers it
approptiate to create a collective provision based on the age of 1he trade reccivable in respect of certain Lypes of trade
receivables,

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m
Current 4.9
30-60 days 14.0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 0.3
19.7

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and othet tecelvables is approximately equal to thelr fair
value.

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no loss allowance has been made at 31 December ig £0.7m.

Further (o the credit risks described on cash and trade receivables the Group does not have any significanl credit visk
exposiie lo any single counterparty or any group of counterpaitics having similar characteristics, The Group defines
counterpartics as having similar characteristics if they are velated entities,

There is no concern over the credit quality of amounts past due but for which no less allowances has been recognised
sinee the risk is spread over a number of unrelated counterparties which Include central and local Government. The
maximum exposure o crediL risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group.
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Financial visk management (pontinmed)

Interest *ate visk —Senior and Revolving credit facilitles contaiming a vaviable elemeni linked to Sterling Overnight
Index Average

The Group js financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities, The facilities are
denominated in pounds and are boriowed with intetest at a vayiable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revalving facililies ave vepayable on 31 August 2026.

In addition to assessments requived by macro-economie events, the Group monitars its near term interest rate exposure
on n monthly basis, and longer term exposure on a bi-annual basis. This includes the review of the options svellable
to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does net have a hedged component to the interest burden on its
external debt, In light of prevailing mavket conditions, and the bigh cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate rises.

Based on modelling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONLA cates would have a £1.65m increase or decrease on
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum likely change in
interest rates over the year flom the period end) would have an impact of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Group’s external debt,

Ligwidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments end anticipated
projects. Borrowing facilities are wtilised as necessary to Hinance requirements. The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows from profils to fund current commitments.

The foliowing table shows the contraciual cash flow maturities for financial [{abilities:

Total 01 years 2-Syears S5+ yeals

‘Trude and other payebles 206 216
Borrowlnigs 165.0 165.0
Leage labilities 303.8 155 57.0 2313

Foreign currency vislk

Substantially all of the Graup®s opesations are in the UK and as such foraign currency risk s not deemed significant.
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Capital Rislk Mansgement

'The Group's abjective when managing its capital is o ensure that entilies in the Group will be able to continue as a
golng concern whilst maximising refuims for stakeholders through (he oplimisationt of debt and equity, The Group’s
capital strucluce is as follows:

2022
£m
Cash 18.1
Bomowings! (165.0)
Lease lighifities {f60.3)
Equity 92.0
1. Bucluding acerued intetest and capiinlised debl Fees
Anatysis of net debt
Rusiness Cash Ofher
Cuomhinations flow Interest movement?
£m £m £ £m fm
Cash 55 12.6 - - 18,1
Borrowings' (41.3) (123.7} - - (165.0)
Net Debt (excluding (35.8) {111.1} - - (146.9)
Lense liabilities)
_Lease linbilities (153.4) 15.3 (16.5) (11.9) {160.5)
Nat Debt (193.0) (92,0} (10.5) (11.9) (307.4)

H Exeluding aceruad interest and capilalised debt fees of £5.4m
2, Relales 1o nen-cash iovenyenis in lease linbilities - see nole 13 for deisils

28, Related parties

Ultimate pavent and confreliing party

The Company’s immediate parent is Standbyce 35 B.V

The uftimate pareat Is Waterland Private Equity Investments 5.V

The uttimate controlling party is Waterland Privale Equity Investmenis B.Y

Aspuis Holdeo Limited is the smallest an! lavgest company for which conselidated financial statements are prepared
for public use.
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Related partles {contbined)

Balances and hensactions between the Company and its subsidiacies, which ave related partics, have been eliminated
on cosnsalidation and ate not disclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £1,4m from Swudi Healthcare LLC, a related perty as a joint venture investment which is cquity
aceounted for in these statements, there is no inferest charge, and this balance is vepayable en demand. Held against
this recetvable is a provisian of £0.4m for the Group's share of the initial losses lnctnred over the investment amount
made in Saudi Healthcare LLC. The net of the amaunts owed of £3.0m is deteiled in note 18,

The Group pajd & management charge of £30,000 to WPEF VI Holding Coyperatief W.A, a related party through
common canirol.

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17} Prioty Bducation Services Limited (“PESL") was a part of the Priory
Group. Al the lime of the transaction Priory Group was 8 telated party, Whilst the Group’s operations were favgely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the tecipiont of central stipport services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These seivices continved under g tratisilional services arrangement sgreed af the fime of the
Group's acquisition of PRSL. This transitional agreement provided for back office support, ineluding use of systems
and software, human yesources support, estales and aspecis of financial Teporting assistance. This transitional stage
included the Jmplementation of Aspris’ own standalone systems and support infrastvuciure, the process of which was
completed by 30ih November 2022, wilh all services received under this transitional arrasgement ceased to be
provided from that date.

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquited 100% of the issued share capital of $C Topco Limited (nots 17), oblaining
control. SC Topee Limited vwas a rolated party by the nature of comimen ownership. Ons of the princlpa! purpases of
the scquisition was to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland proup that is focused on
providing chitdren's service.

During the period an amount of £0.4m was advanced to directors at an Interest rale equal to the IIMRC officlal rate
of interest, on a term concurrent with the peviod swith which the Directors reraain shareholders in the Group. Interest
is paid by the Directors annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is penmitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.Zm weve made, with the remaining £0.2m outstandiag at the period end
being included in other receivables {note 18)
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{continued)
Key nanagement personnel

Key management personned arc those persons having authority and responsibility for plenning, directing and
conltolling the activities of lhe Group.

2022
£060
Directors’ emoluments 1,926
Directors’ post-employment benefits _ 8

Total emotuments for (he highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-off nen-recurring reward of
£305,000 releting lo the exceptionally high level of corporate transaclions and reprganisation activity successfully
completed during the peried, The value of the Company’s contyibutions paid to a defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of the highest pald divecior nmounted to £4,000,

The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits are acerued under money purchase pension schenes is 2,

29, Events after reporting dnte
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistenl with the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group completed the acquisition of a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on 1 Mareh 2023.

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100
primacy and secondary school aged young people in the Easl of England,

To support this gequisilion, and the Group's broader growth ohjectives, the Group entered into an extension of its
available external debl facilitics with its existing lenders. This hew growdh facility was agreed and effective from 8
February 2023, These facilities provide an additionel £25m of committed avallable debt capacity to support the
growth projects of the Group,

In additlon, &y part of the above acquisition the Group issued additional equity enpits! to its shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition belng funded through 2 combination of & partial dravdown of the new growth debt
{acility and this new equity capital raise,
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